
 

Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting should 

contact the park district’s ADA Compliance Officer, Michael Benard, at the park district’s Administrative Office, 

102 E. Wesley Street, Wheaton, IL Monday through Friday from 8:30 am until 4:30 pm at least 48 hours prior to the 

meeting. Requests for a qualified ASL interpreter require five (5) working days advance notice. Telephone number 

630.510-4944; fax number 630.665.5880; email dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org Page 1 

 

 

 

PUBLIC NOTICE 

Meeting - Wheaton Park District Board of Commissioners 

Wednesday October 15, 2025 - 5:00 p.m. 

City of Wheaton Council Chambers 303 W. Wesley Street Wheaton, Illinois 

 

October 10, 2025 

Public notice is hereby given that the Board of Park Commissioners of Wheaton Park will 

meet Wednesday October 15, 2025 

The meeting will take place at Wheaton City Hall, 303 W. Wesley, Wheaton, IL. 

Please contact Michael J. Benard, Board Secretary, for further information. 

mbenard@wheatonparks.org 

 

 

Michael J. Benard  

Secretary 

 

 

 

The Agenda for the October 15, 2025, Meeting is as Follows: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org
mailto:mbenard@wheatonparks.org


 

Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting should 

contact the park district’s ADA Compliance Officer, Michael Benard, at the park district’s Administrative Office, 

102 E. Wesley Street, Wheaton, IL Monday through Friday from 8:30 am until 4:30 pm at least 48 hours prior to the 

meeting. Requests for a qualified ASL interpreter require five (5) working days advance notice. Telephone number 

630.510-4944; fax number 630.665.5880; email dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org Page 2 

 

Meeting of the Wheaton Park District Board of Commissioners  

October 15, 2025, 5:00 pm 

CALL TO ORDER 

PRESENTATIONS 

Mary Lubko Center Programs & Trips 

 

COMMUNITY INPUT 

Public comments are important to the Board. However, it is the Board’s policy not to take action 

on items until time has been taken to gather information and discuss all options. Lack of action 

does not imply lack of interest in the issues. During the community input portion of the agenda 

the Board typically will ask residents to provide input prior to accepting input from nonresidents. 

The purpose of the public participation is to allow the public the opportunity to make a statement 

to the Board. The purpose of public participation is not to provoke a debate with the Board. Once 

an individual has spoken, that individual may not speak on the same issue again. Any limitation 

regarding addressing the Board may be waived by a majority vote of the Board. 

Except during the public comment portion of the regular Board agenda, or as stated in this rule, 

no person other than the Executive Director or the District’s Attorney may address the Board. 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Consent Agenda items are considered by the Park District to be routine and will be enacted in 

one motion. There will be no separate discussion on these items. If a member of the Park Board 

requests, a Consent Agenda item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and considered as an 

individual item at the end of old or new business. 

A. Approval of the Disbursements totaling $1,318,026.96 for the period beginning 

September 10, 2025, and ending October 7, 2025 

B. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes September 25, 2025 

 

 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

None 

 

 

 

 

mailto:dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org


 

Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting should 

contact the park district’s ADA Compliance Officer, Michael Benard, at the park district’s Administrative Office, 

102 E. Wesley Street, Wheaton, IL Monday through Friday from 8:30 am until 4:30 pm at least 48 hours prior to the 

meeting. Requests for a qualified ASL interpreter require five (5) working days advance notice. Telephone number 

630.510-4944; fax number 630.665.5880; email dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org Page 3 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. 2025 Ray Morrill Community Center Building Automation System Project- 

Motion to approve the base bid from Precision Control Systems in the amount of 

$135,500 plus a 10% contingency. 

2. Ray Morrill Community Center- Locker Room Modifications- Motion to accept the 

quote from Prestige Distribution, Inc. in the amount of $35,890. 

3. Resolution 2025-04 – Motion to approve Resolution 2025-04 Authorizing the Estimate 

of the Annual Aggregate Levy in Compliance with the Truth in Taxation Law 

4. 2026 Budget and Appropriation Ordinance Draft – Motion to Place the 2026 Budget 

and Appropriation Ordinance Draft and Related Reports on 30-day Public Inspection 

5. Professional Auditing Services for Fiscal Years 2025-2027 – Motion to Accept the 

Proposal from Lauterbach & Amen for Professional Auditing Services for the Wheaton 

Park District and Affiliate Foundations at cost of $42,300 for 2025, $43,900 for 2026 and 

$45,500 for 2027.  

6. Arrowhead Golf Club Food Purchases – Motion to Approve the Bids for the Following 

Products, Vendors, Costs and Pricing Terms as Presented from December 2025 through 

November 2026.             
 

Dairy:             Sysco Chicago    $ 149,520        Commodity Pricing- 1 year 
Seafood:         Sysco Chicago    $   51,883         Commodity Pricing- 1 year 
Poultry:          Consumers Meat        $ 115,780        Commodity Pricing- 1 year 
Meat:    Consumers Meat            $ 353,539  Fixed Pricing- 1 year 
Bread:             Turano Baking    $   106,698 Fixed Pricing- 1 year 
General/Froz: Sysco Chicago    $ 172,188        Fixed Pricing- 1 year 
Dry Goods:    Sysco Chicago    $ 173,482 Fixed Pricing- 1 year 
Paper/Disp:    Trimark USA             $   64,745         Commodity Pricing- 1year 
Produce:         Get Fresh                     $ 156,547 Fixed Pricing- 1 year 
Beverages:     Sysco Chicago     $   17,391         Fixed Pricing- 1 year 

 

7. Arrowhead Golf Course Chemical Purchases – Motion to Approve the Bids for the 

Vendors, Products and Prices per Staff Recommendations for the 2026 Fiscal Year. (see 

back page of Agenda) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org


 

Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting should 

contact the park district’s ADA Compliance Officer, Michael Benard, at the park district’s Administrative Office, 

102 E. Wesley Street, Wheaton, IL Monday through Friday from 8:30 am until 4:30 pm at least 48 hours prior to the 

meeting. Requests for a qualified ASL interpreter require five (5) working days advance notice. Telephone number 

630.510-4944; fax number 630.665.5880; email dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org Page 4 

 

 

REPORTS FROM STAFF 

• Executive Director 

• Monthly Department Reports – Finance, Marketing, Development, Events, 

Recreation, Athletics, Cosley Zoo, Parks, and Planning 

• Annual Report - None 

BOARD SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS / DISCUSSION 

CLOSED SESSION 

a) Appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal of 

specific employees, 5ILCS 120/2 (c) (1) 

b) The Selection of a Person to Fill a Vacancy in Public Office, 5 ILCS 120/2(c) (3). 

c) Purchase or lease of real property, 5ILCS 120/2 (c) (5) 

d) Setting of price for sale or lease of property owned by the public body, 5ILCS 120/2 (c) 

(6) 

e) Pending, probable or imminent litigation, 5ILCS 120/2 (c) (11) 

f) Discussion of minutes of meetings lawfully closed under this Act, whether for purposes 

of approval by the body of the minutes or semi-annual review of the minutes, 5 ILCS 

120/2 (c) (21) 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org


 

Persons with disabilities requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in this meeting should 

contact the park district’s ADA Compliance Officer, Michael Benard, at the park district’s Administrative Office, 

102 E. Wesley Street, Wheaton, IL Monday through Friday from 8:30 am until 4:30 pm at least 48 hours prior to the 

meeting. Requests for a qualified ASL interpreter require five (5) working days advance notice. Telephone number 

630.510-4944; fax number 630.665.5880; email dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org Page 5 

 

 

Motion Details – New Business Number 7 

 

Arrowhead Golf Course Chemicals 2026 

 

Advanced Turf Solutions of Geneva, IL for: Isoxaben in the amount of $194.25, Prohexadione in the 

amount of $1,520.50.00 for per/case, Defendor in the amount of $852.52 per/case, Mesotrione 21-22-4 in 

the amount of $56.41 per bag, Gold Standard 45 in the amount of $207.27 for 2.5 gallons, 22-0-4 w/ZnB 

50% XCU in the amount of $979.90 per ton, Advanced HGT 80/20 seed for 297.50 per/bag, Aloft in the 

amount of $675.30 for 64oz,  Command in the amount of $144.93 for 2.5 gallons 

 

Clesen’s of Linconshire, IL for: Chlorantraniliprole in the amount of $1,100.00  per case, Game On in the 

amount of $171.85 for 2.5 gallons, Fluazinam in the amount of $457.10 per case,  Propamocarb in the 

amount of $97.55 for 1 gallon, Chlorothalonil in the amount of $118.50 per case, Cutless MEC in the 

amount of $1,317.50 for 2.5 gallons, and Iprodione in the amount of $159.55 for 2.5 gallons.  

 

Pendleton Turf Supply of Waterford, WI for: Tebuconazole in the amount of $39.40 per gallon, 

Trinexapac-ethyl in the amount of $220.00 for 2.5 gallons, Propiconazole in the amount of $110 for 2.5 

gallons, Paclobutrazol in the amount of $100.00 per gallon, and Thiophanate-methyl in the amount of 

$101.55 for 2.5 gallons. 

 

 Conserve FS of Tinley Park, IL for Carbaryl in the amount of $175.00 for 2.5 gallons. 

 

Simplot AB Retail of Downers Grove, IL for: Syngenta Winter Solution in the amount of $6,572.00 per 

unit, Syngenta A2Z Solution in the amount of $8181.00 per unit, Daconil Action in the amount of 

$265.00 for 2.5 gallons, Daconil Weatherstick in the amount of $210.00 for 2.5 gallons, Syngenta Forte 

Solution in the amount of $19,178.00 per unit, Syngenta Fairy Ring Solution in the amount of $9008.00 

per unit, Signature Extra in the amount of $184.88 per 5.5 lbs, Serata in the amount of $459.81 for 35oz, 

Tartan in the amount of $981.35 for 2.5 gallons, Andersons 9-12-6 HCU in the amount of 41.40 per bag, 

Rely in the amount of $200 for 2.5 gallons, Forte in the amount of $1200.00 for 2.5 gallons, Reslia in the 

amount of $881.56 per case, Tetrino in the amount of $1952.00 per case 

 

 

 

  

mailto:dsiciliano@wheatonparks.org










































































Page 1 
 

 
Wheaton Park District Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes  

Wednesday September 24, 2025 5:00 p.m. 
City of Wheaton Council Chambers 303 W. Wesley Street Wheaton, Illinois 

 
 

CALL TO ORDER – President Vires called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m.  Commissioners 
Barrett, Frey, Kelly, Mee, Pecharich were present. 
 
Commissioner Welker was absent  
 
PRESENTATIONS 
Lincoln Marsh Program Manager, Terra Johnson, gave a presentation on upcoming Recreation 
Department Programs & Events.  

Johnson stated she was at the meeting representing the Recreation department to give the board a 
sneak peek at our fall lineup of programs and events.  

Coming up is our annual Halloween Happening  

• Friday, October 10 5:30-7:30P @ Ray Morrill Community Center 
• We expect approximately 1,000 guests to attend and participate in games, activities and 

crafts, there will be a  bounce house, food truck, touch a truck with over 15 trucks to visit 
and our, candyland trick or treat trail. 

• We are able to host this event thanks to our park district staff who volunteer and approx. 
60 volunteers from local high schools. 

Songs of Vietnam will be hosted for free at the DuPage County Historical Museum  

• 10/16 7-8P in the Museum Auditorium 
• The History Singers will discuss music in support of, and in opposition to, the Vietnam 

War. This music was heard on the radio, at protest rallies, and in Vietnam where 
American soldiers accessed music as their own version of protest. 

Lincoln Marsh is hosting a “not so spooky” Spooky Geocache Hunt   

• 10/24 & 10/25 
• Unique opportunity for families to explore Lincoln Marsh in the evening and hunt for 

pumpkins using GPS units 
 

On Wednesday, November 5th from 5:30-7:30 at the Ray Morrill Community Center staff will be 
hosting a Boys Night Out with Mom  

• This is a fun night out for boys ages 4-11 and their moms or other special lady in their life 
with pizza & reptile show. 

On November 12 we host Pages & Palettes: A Family Art Show and Children’s Book fair at 
the Ray Morrill Community Center from 5:30-7P. 



Page 2 
 

• The whole family can browse artwork created by Park District participants, purchase 
children’s books and listen to singers from our performing arts program. 

The Children’s Playhouse present: Disney’s Lion King Jr. this year the weekend of November 
20-23rd at the Ray Morrill Community Center.  

• This family-friendly performance celebrates the circle of life in the timeless story of 
courage, friendship and destiny.   

• The production features 62 cast members and 2 backstage crew  
• With approximately 1,200 tickets sold over 4 the performances it’s a production you 

won’t want to miss.  
As the fall season wraps up, we shift into holiday mode with the Mary Lubko Center hosting 
several holiday events at the Ray Morrill Community Center for all ages.   

The Silvertones Chorus will present It Feels like Christmas on December 6th at 2P 
and Beyond Glee will present Reflections of Christmas on December 7th at 3P.   

• Over 500 patrons will enjoy the 50 singers that participate on those choirs.   
And last but not least, the Holiday Gala for those 18 and over at the Mary Lubko 
Center will be on December 11th from 12-2P.  

• The event includes lunch and performance featuring Christmas Classics for 65 
guests.  

 

Commissioner Mee asked how many events are new, Johnson stated that there is a new 
production of the Lion King, but the others are older.  

Commissioner Pecharich asked if other park districts provide these types of programs, Johnson 
stated that she believes many are unique to Wheaton. Executive Director Benard said that 
DuPage County is fortunate to have so many strong park districts that add to the residents’ 
quality of life.   

COMMUNITY INPUT 
John Patterson 1849 Cherry Street, Wheaton, IL 
Patterson was concerned with the changes to the Board General Practices Manual that limited 
public comment time.   
 
 
CONSENT AGENDA  

A. Approval of the Disbursements totaling $2,368,746.69 for the period beginning July 9, 
2025, and ending August 12, 2025 

B. Approval of the Disbursements totaling $2,252,230.51 for the period beginning August 
12, 2025, and ending September 9, 2025 

C. Approval of Subcommittee Meeting Minutes July 2, 2025 
D. Approval of Closed Session Meeting Minutes July 2, 2025 
E. Approval of Subcommittee Meeting Minutes September 3, 2025 
F. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes July 16, 2025 
G. Approval of Amendments to the Board Meeting Schedule of the Wheaton Park District  

 



Page 3 
 

Commissioner Mee moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.  
Seconded by Commissioner Frey.  No discussion  
 
Motion passed by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Barrett, Frey, Kelly, Mee, Pecharich, Vires 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Welker 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 None 
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

1. Cream of Wheaton Payment to the City of Wheaton-  

Commissioner Pecharich moved to approve payment to the City of Wheaton for 
special event support services for the Cream of Wheaton not to exceed $33,658.58.  
Seconded by Commissioner Barrett. 

Commissioner Mee expressed gratitude for the support the park district receives from 
the City of Wheaton.  President Vires noted that this payment is higher than last 
years.  Benard stated that the fees for police services fluctuate depending on the rank 
of the officers that accept the extraordinary service assignments related to the Cream 
of Wheaton.  The 2025 fees are also higher than the 2024 fees due to a rain out day in 
2024.  

Motion passed by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Barrett, Frey, Kelly, Mee, Pecharich, Vires 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Welker 
 

2. Wheaton Park District Policy Review and Update  

Commissioner Mee moved to Approve Wheaton Park District Board of 
Commissioners General Practices & Polices.  Seconded by Commissioner Frey.  

Commissioner Kelly stated that he does not think the proposed changes are necessary.  
The Park Board President has the discretion to extend public comment time, if he/she 
deems it appropriate.   President Vires stated that staff reviewed public comment 
times for other local government entities and that the proposed changes are in line 
with them.   Vires suggested we add a statement to the policy that clarifies that the 
board president can increase public comment time at their discretion.   

Commissioners Mee and Frey agreed to amend their motion and second to reflect the 
addition suggested by President Vires.   

 
 



Page 4 
 

Motion passed by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Barrett, Frey, Kelly, Mee, Pecharich, Vires 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Welker 
 

3. DuPage County Historical Museum Grant Funded Building Improvement 
Projects  

Commissioner Frey moved to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement between the 
County of DuPage Illinois and the Wheaton Park District for DuPage County 
Historical Museum Doorways Project.  Seconded by Commissioner Barrett.  

Benard thanked DuPage County Board Member Grant Eckoff for this grant.   

Motion passed by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Barrett, Frey, Kelly, Mee, Pecharich, Vires 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Welker 
 

4. Cosley Zoo Staff and Overflow Parking Area Construction Project  
Commissioner Pecharich moved to approve Change Order #7 & #9 resulting in a 
contract increase of $10,044.02 with E.P. Doyle Construction.  Seconded by 
Commissioner Mee. No discussion. 
Motion passed by voice vote. 
 

5. Cosley Zoo Education Pavilion & Duck Enclosure Project  
Commissioner Barrett moved to approve Change Orders #8 & #9 resulting in a 
contract increase of $3,363 with E.P. Doyle Construction.  Seconded by 
Commissioner Frey 
 
Commissioner Kelly said this is for undercuts, unsuitable soil.  No further discussion. 
Motion passed by voice vote. 
 
 

6. Briar Patch Park Batting Cage Project  
Commissioner Mee moved to reject bids and allow staff to rebid.  Seconded by 
Commissioner Pecharich 
 
Commissioner Kelly asked who was paying for this.  Benard said Briarcliffe Baseball 
is paying 100%.  The public will be allowed to use this as well as Briarcliffe. 
 
Motion passed by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Barrett, Frey, Kelly, Mee, Pecharich, Vires 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Welker 



Page 5 
 

 
7. Arrowhead Golf Club Parking Lot Replacement Project Phase 1  

Commissioner Barrett moved to approve the base bid and alternate bid from 
Chicagoland in the total amount of $211,000 along with a 10% contingency of 
$21,100.  Seconded by Commissioner Mee. 
 
Commissioner Kelly requested the details related to the cart path replacement portion 
of this project.   He also verified that the replacement of Arrowhead’s parking lot will 
take place over four years.  
 
Motion passed by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Barrett, Frey, Kelly, Mee, Pecharich, Vires 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Welker 
 

8. Northside Park Lagoon Settling Basin Engineering – 
Commissioner Mee moved to approve the proposal from Burke LLC in the amount 
not to exceed $38,000 for the engineering and permitting related to Northside Park 
Pond Dredging.  Seconded by Commissioner Barrett. 
 
Commissioner Mee asked when the last time was that the settling basin was dredged.  
Benard stated that the settling basin was created 12 years ago.   
 
Motion passed by roll call vote. 
Ayes: Barrett, Frey, Kelly, Mee, Pecharich, Vires 
Nays: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Welker 

 
REPORTS FROM STAFF 
Benard Reported: 

• Overflow Parking Area: Work will conclude mid-October. 
• Hale Family Pavilion: Most punch list items will be completed next week, with a few 

remaining due to material delays. Commissioner Pecharich asked about the Hale Family 
Pavilion usage.  Benard responded that the pavilion will be used primarily during the 
daytime, with occasional special events. Several events are already scheduled in October 
and November. 
Commissioner Pecharich Comments: 

• Golf: Arrowhead had the highest number of rounds in 20 years. 
• Soccer: Noted an increase in in-house and travel participation. With growing numbers, 

there's a concern about having enough practice spaces. 
o Director of Athletics Lewandowski has been creative using school facilities. 
o The number of Wheaton United teams will not increase.  

 
 
 



Page 6 
 

Commissioner Mee Comments: 
• Arrowhead golf course has received numerous accolades. 
• Positive feedback on banquets and restaurant operations. 
• Pools showed an increase in both attendance and revenue in 2025. 
• Summer concert series saw strong attendance. 
• Kudos to staff, police, and CERT for excellent execution.  Benard added congratulations 

to Director of Marketing Wilhelmi and the parks staff for their outstanding work. 
Commissioner Kelly Comments: 

• The 2023 zoo annual report retail revenue figure appears to be a typo. Requested 
correction before website publication. 

• Cosley Zoo Christmas Tree Sales: Down last year. He asked what happened to the surplus 
trees.  Director of Cosley Zoo Bockheim said the Surplus trees are sometimes used in 
animal exhibits but are usually mulched.  
Commissioner Pecharich: 

• Commented that she was impressed with the zoo annual report. 
 

BOARD SUBCOMMITTEE REPORTS / DISCUSSION 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
At 5:35 p.m., Commissioner Mee moved to adjourn the meeting.  Commissioner Barrett 
seconded.  Motion passed by voice vote. 
 
 
 
 











Comparison with Lockers at Other Facilities 

PPF Existing Lockers 
13.75W x 13D x 28.75 interior measurements 

     
 

Lifetime Fitness 
12.5W x 20.5D x 35.5T interior 

 
 

Wheaton Sports Center 
 

 
 



TO:  Board of Commissioners 

 
FROM: Rob Sperl, Director of Parks and Planning 
  Steve Hinchee, Superintendent of Planning 
   
THROUGH: Michael Benard, Executive Director 
 
RE: Community Center Phase 2 Interiors – Change Order #6 
 
DATE:  November 20, 2024 
 
 
SUMMARY:  
Work on the Community Center phase 2 interiors is substantially complete. As a result of 
negotiations, several of the previous change orders that were approved in October have been 
reduced to no charge and a credit has been provided for an error in the lockers. This is the final 
change order to close out the contract. 
 

  Org. CO #6 Rev. CO #6 
CR30 Spa deck structural repairs $1,772.10 $0.00 
CR32 Bucket switch credit  $(3,750.00) $0.00 
CR33 Steam rooms door seal  $1,327.20   $0.00  
CR34 Additional grab bars and coat hooks  $4,894.12   $0.00 
CR35 Deduct for change in locker sizing N/A $(7,500.00) 
 Total Change $4,243.42 $(7,500.00) 

 
PREVIOUS COMMITTEE/BOARD ACTION:                           
The original contract with Stuckey Construction was approved at the August 14, 2023 board 
meeting, along with a 10% contingency for this project. Change orders 1 to 5 were approved as 
noted below. 
 
REVENUE OR FUNDING IMPLICATIONS: 
 
The original contract $3,945,000.00 Approved August 14, 2023 
Change Order #1 $12,003.56 Approved November 29, 2023 
Change Order #2 $30,843.89 Approved January 17, 2024 
Change Order #3 $(68,112.52) Approved March 20, 2024 
Change Order #4 $30,366.11 Approved April 17, 2024 
Change Order #5 $7,278.55 Approved May 15, 2024 
Change Order #6 revised $(7,500.00) Current Recommendation 
Total $3,945,687.47 $393,812.53 contingency remaining 

 
STAKEHOLDER PROCESS: 
Our architect reviewed these changes and recommended approving them. Community Center 
staff continues to be involved throughout the construction process. 



 
LEGAL REVIEW: 
N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Attorney memo 
Williams recommendation letter 
Stuckey quotes 
 
ALTERNATIVES: 
N/A 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends Change Order #6 in the amount of $4,234.42 approved at October 23, 2024 
Board meeting be rescinded. 
 
Staff recommends the Wheaton Park District Board of Commissioners approve a revised Change 
Order #6 in the amount of a $(7,500) credit with Stuckey Construction. 



 



 











WHEATON PARK DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION 2025-04 

AUTHORIZING THE ESTIMATE OF THE ANNUAL AGGREGATE LEVY IN 
COMPLIANCE WITH THE TRUTH IN TAXATION LAW 

RESOLVED, by the Board of Park Commissioners of the Wheaton Park District, 
DuPage County, Illinois that, based upon the most recently ascertainable information, the 
following determinations are hereby made in accordance with the “Truth in Taxation Law”: 

1. The amount of real estate taxes, exclusive of election costs, public building
commission leases and debt service levies, extended by the Park District, plus any
amount abated by the Park District before extension, upon the final 2024 real
estate tax levy of the Park District (2025 tax bill) is $14,574,601.

2. The amount of real estate taxes, exclusive of election costs, public building
commission leases and debt service levies, proposed to be levied by the Park
District for 2025 (2026 tax bill) is $14,657,971.

3. Based on the foregoing, the estimated percentage increase in the proposed 2025
aggregate levy from the amount of real estate taxes extended upon the final 2024
aggregate levy is 0.57%, and that, accordingly, no public hearing or publication is
required under the Truth in Taxation Law.

AYES:  

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

Passed this 15th day of October, 2025. 

President, Board of Park Commissioners 

Attested and Filed this  day of  , 2025. 

Secretary, Board of Park Commissioners 



STATE OF ILLINOIS ) 
) 
) SS 

COUNTY OF DUPAGE ) 

I, Michael J. Benard, Secretary of the Board of Park Commissioners of the WHEATON 
PARK DISTRICT, County of DuPage, State of Illinois, do hereby certify that I am the duly 
qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Park Commissioners of the Wheaton Park District, 
County of DuPage and the State of Illinois. 

I do further certify that as such official, I have care and custody of all official records of 
the Board of Park Commissioners of said WHEATON PARK DISTRICT, and I do further 
certify that the annexed and foregoing Ordinance is a true and correct copy of an Ordinance 
entitled, “A RESOLUTION NO. 2025-04 Authorizing the Estimate of Annual Aggregate 
Levy in Compliance with the Truth in Taxation Law,” adopted and passed by the Board of 
Commissioners of the Wheaton Park District on the 15th of October, 2025. The vote to adopt the 
aforesaid Resolution was as follows: 

AYES:  ____ NAYS:   ______ ABSENT:  _________ 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal of the 
WHEATON PARK DISTRICT. 

__________________________________ 
Michael J. Benard, Secretary,  
Board of Commissioners  
WHEATON PARK DISTRICT, 
County of DuPage, State of Illinois 



 

 

CERTIFICATE OF PRESIDING OFFICER 

I, John Vires hereby certify that I am the duly elected and acting President of the Board of Park 
Commissioners of the Wheaton Park District, Wheaton, DuPage County, Illinois, and that as 
such President, I am the presiding officer of the corporate authority of said Park District.  
 
I further certify that the attached copy of the ordinance levying and assessing taxes of the 
Wheaton Park District for 2025, was adopted pursuant to, and in all respects in compliance with, 
the provisions of Sections 18-60 through 18-85 of the Truth in Taxation Law (“Law”). 
 
The notice and hearing requirements of Sections 18-70 through 18-85 of the Law are 
inapplicable. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have signed my name in my official capacity as the President and 
presiding officer of the Board of Park Commissioners of the Wheaton Park District at Wheaton, 
Illinois this ______ day of _______________, 2025. 
 
 

________________________________________ 
President, Board of Park Commissioners 



To: 

From: 

Date: 

Re: 

M E M O R A N D U M 

Wheaton Park District Board of Commissioners  

Michael Benard, Executive Director 
Sandra Simpson, Director of Finance 

October 15, 2025 

2025 Resolution Authorizing the Estimate of Annual Aggregate Levy 

Introduction 

Attached is a package of information intended to provide you with a complete picture of how the Estimate 
of the Annual Aggregate Levy in Compliance with the Truth in Taxation Law was calculated. Included are: 

• The resolution itself, including the Secretary’s Certification.

• A graphic depiction of what the 2025 proposed levy means to various homeowners in Wheaton,
one with a home with a value of $300,000, one with a value of $450,000, one with a value of
$600,000 and one with a value of $900,000.

• Tax Levy Rate History for the past 10 years. This also includes % increase (decrease) in rates each
year over this 10-year period.

• Tax Levy Dollars History for the past 10 years. This also includes % increase (decrease) in dollars
each year over this 10-year period.

• CPI history for the District for the 10 most current years. This illustrates the changes in the CPI
which is the most significant factor to increase the limiting rate for a stable growth community like
Wheaton.

• History of the EAV of the Wheaton Park District over the past ten years. The increases (decreases)
in the EAV, year over year and the cumulative average changes in EAV going back to 1998 have also
been calculated as well as the composition of the components of the EAV.

• Ten years of new construction history.

• A worksheet that spells out exactly how the limiting rate is calculated.

• Five worksheets that show the Proposed Tax Levies for the 2025, 2026, 2027, 2028 and 2029 levies.
You are voting on only the 2025 levy, but the future periods are provided for planning purposes.

• The next four worksheets show the calculations for determining the special purpose levies for the
Liability, Audit, FICA, and IMRF levies. These special purpose levies are evaluated first in calculating
the levy as they represent specific obligations that have been imposed upon or assumed by the
District. As such, they are a “higher” priority for the District in allocating the limited property tax
dollars available.

Page 1 of 27



Draft Calculation of Levy 

In the proposed levy draft, the 2025 aggregate levy (to be 
received in 2026) includes an increase of $517K, 
representing an estimated increase of 3.7%. For the 2025 
levy, the state has established the Consumer Price 
Index (CPI) for PTELL at 2.9%, reflecting a return to 
levels consistent with historical trends, as illustrated in 
the adjacent chart.  As per the Board’s direction, the CPI 
used to calculate the District’s levy was set at 0% for 
2022, 2% for 2023 and 3% in 2024. The aggregate tax levy 
includes those levies that are subject to the tax cap.   
Tax levy receipts are vital as they provide the necessary 
funding to support our operational service levels, ensuring 
the maintenance of facilities and programs, while also 
contributing to the upkeep and improvement of capital 
infrastructure for long-term sustainability. 

The chart below illustrates the proposed 3.7% increase by category, dollars, and as a percentage of the levy 
subject to the tax cap. 

The levies outside of the tax cap, our debt and SRA levies, are displayed below the aggregate extension. 
Again, this year in the debt levies, we have included an estimate of the annual debt issue which is typically 
issued in October or November of each year. That issue has been included here and in the budget in the 
amount of $2,296,023, which is the estimate provided by Speer, our municipal advisors. That amount is 
included in this tax levy analysis. However, it has not yet been authorized by the Board nor issued. The 
county does not levy taxes for GO Bonds based upon our tax levy but rather based upon the Board’s bond 
ordinance(s).  

 Page 2 of 27



As the Board is aware, the Wheaton Park District adjusts the tax levies in each of the “small” funds 
[Liability, Audit, FICA, and IMRF] to bring their fund balances in line with the board’s fund balance policy. 

As you can see from the levy worksheet pages following, the IMRF levy is increasing to 
just over $575K in the 2025 levy and then ranges from $545K to $581K through 2029. 
Our employer contribution rate will increase slightly to 5.30% in 2026, or 1.3%.  The 
table to the right shows the IMRF employer rates over the last 15 years.  The increase is 
mainly attributable to the reduction of employer overfunded balances at IMRF, which 
were caused by strong investment returns and the resumption of normal cost funding 
requirements. The FICA and Liability levies are being adjusted to bring the balances in 
line with your fund balance policy. The Audit levy is forecast to be just over $35K in 
anticipation of having to go out to bid for a new three-year contract as our current 
engagement ended in 2024.  

Additionally, the SRA levy has been increased to fund accessibility improvements for 2026-2028 capital 
projects and the District’s membership in the Western DuPage Special Recreation Association (WDSRA).  As 
you recall, the board authorized a reduction of the 2022 levy. In recent years, we have incrementally raised 
the levy to restore it to its historical levels, ensuring that it does not surpass the statutory rate cap of 
0.0400. 

Beginning with levy year 2021 and because of Public Act 102-0519 (SB 508), the District’s levy will be 
increased by a prior year adjustment due to refunds from certificates of error, tax valuation objections and 
PTAB (Property Tax Appeal Board) decisions resulting in a refund. The District received $55,684 in 
Aggregate Refunds for the 2024 levy. The county treasurer will certify these amounts on or before 
November 15th of each year. The increase to the District’s levy is automatic and is not to be included in the 
extension base of the prior year. 

Previous staff recommendations and final board decisions for levy years 2022, 2023 and 2024 

For the 2022 levy (taxes received in 2023), staff recommended a levy increase of $943K or an 8% increase. 
As the board recalls, this increase was due to three factors, the CPI Rate for the 2022 Property Tax Levy 
Year was at a historical high of 5.0% or $610K in new taxes, New Construction generated $94K in new taxes 
and TIF 2 expired representing approximately $41.5 million in incremental EAV.  Access to the increment
directed an additional $239K in property taxes to the Wheaton Park District for the 2022 levy.  

Based on consensus and final board direction, the District’s 2022 levy was increased by 3% or $318K, 
reducing the CPI to 0% and including 1% New Construction and 2% TIF 2 Expiration.  

Page 3 of 27



2022 Levy as proposed by staff

Final Levy approved by Park Board 

Page 4 of 27



For the 2023 levy (taxes received in 2024), staff recommended a levy increase of $909K or a 7% increase. 
Again, this increase was possible due to the CPI Rate for the 2023 Property Tax Levy Year being at a 
historical high of 5.0% for the second year in a row or $626K. Additionally New Construction generated 
$283K in new taxes primarily due to the expired TIF 2 increment being included in the 2022 New 
Construction Value.  As you recall, TIF 2 represented approximately $41.5 million in incremental EAV. 

Based on consensus and final board direction, the District’s 2023 levy was increased by 4% or $526K, 
reducing the CPI to 2% and including 2% New Construction. 

2023 Levy as proposed by staff 

Page 5 of 27



Final Levy approved by Park Board 

For the 2024 levy (taxes received in 2025), staff recommended a levy increase of $546K or a 4% increase.  
The CPI for PTELL was significantly lower in 2024 at 3.4% compared to the historical high of 5% in 2022 and 
2023. The 2024 proposed levy was determined based on the PTELL CPI rate of 3.4% and the DuPage 
New Construction amount reported by the clerk’s office. 

Based on consensus and direction from the board, the District’s 2024 levy was increased by 3.7% or 
$493K, reducing the CPI to 3% and including 0.7% New Construction. 

Page 6 of 27



2024 Levy as proposed by staff 

Final Levy approved by Park Board 

Page 7 of 27



Future Tax Picture 

In the interest of making complete disclosure, it needs to be understood that subsequent year levies are 
educated estimates as to what is really going to happen to the tax levy. We adjust the levy each year based 
upon the CPI increase permitted by law, the change in our EAV and our actual experience in the prior year 
as well as our year-to-date experience, particularly in the Liability, Audit, IMRF and FICA funds. The limiting 
rate is what we are calculating. The taxes we receive are based on multiplying the limiting rate times the 
EAV divided by $100. (The limiting rate is per $100 of assessed value per statute so that is why we divide by 
$100).  

So, what makes the limiting rate go up or down? Short answer, growth in the CPI, lots of new construction 
or no growth in EAV.  

Limiting Rate Calculation: 

• The numerator is the taxes we received last year times the CPI that the state notifies us of, 2.9% for
the 2025 levy. After reaching a high of 5% in post-pandemic levy years 2022 and 2023, the CPI
rates declined in 2024 and again this year.  They are now moving toward levels consistent with
historical averages.

• The denominator is the EAV from the most recent final tax levy worksheet, increased by our best
guess as to how much we believe the property values will increase overall, reduced by any new
construction.

• Our ability to forecast the future tax levies is based upon how close our assumptions about what
the changes in the CPI (measure of inflation), EAV (property values) and new construction are. In
the levy presentation for the out years, we use an estimated CPI growth of 2.0%. Historically, as you
can see from the CPI History worksheet our cumulative average CPI is 2.5%, and the median CPI is
2%.

Key Considerations for the 2025 Levy Regarding CPI Reduction and Implications for Future Levies 

The board reduced the CPI used for levy calculations in 2022, 2023 & 2024, resulting in $1,062,026 less in 
collected taxes - $625,506 for levy year 2022, $383,000 for levy year 2023 and $53,520 for levy year 2024. 

While this offers relief to taxpayers, it often significantly impacts the sustainability of operations and 
pressures annual revenue growth.  The CPI adjustment is intended to keep tax collections in line with 
inflation and rising operational costs.  Reductions in the CPI can lead to structural shortfalls overtime.  
Operational expenses such as salaries, benefits, and maintenance continue to rise year over year.  The gap 
between what is collected and what is needed compounds annually, which can create financial pressures.  
Additionally, under-collecting taxes can permanently lower the baseline for future levies.  A reduced levy 
creates a lower starting point, and any future increase, which is capped by law or tied to inflation, will be 
calculated on a diminished base.  Lower tax revenues can lead to budget cuts, delayed maintenance, and 
reduced programs, potentially affecting long-term planning.  Future decisions may establish precedents 
that influence how the District addresses subsequent challenges. 

The District’s operational and payroll costs have been significantly rising due to inflationary pressures, 
workforce compensation, higher benefits obligations, maintenance and capital improvements and utility 
costs.  During the past five years, the District has experienced an average annual increase of 3% in 
operating costs and 7% in payroll expenses. 

Two illustrations are provided for the Board’s review. One presents the effect of reductions in prior years 
on future levy amounts, and the other shows the historical impact of past and proposed levies on home 
values. 

Page 8 of 27



 20 year Financial Impact to General, Recreation, and Cosley Zoo Levies and Total Aggregate Levy of Uncollected Dollars
Assumes an estimated growth rate of 2%

% of Total 
Aggregate Levy

2022 Levy as 
Proposed by 

Staff

2022 Final Levy 
Approved by 
Park Board

Dollars not 
collected per 

Levy
% of Total 

Aggregate Levy
2023 Levy as 

Proposed by Staff

2023 Final Levy 
Approved by Park 

Board

Dollars not 
collected per 

Levy

General 40% $5,377,483 $5,060,180 $253,212 General 40% $5,426,998 $5,235,498 $153,823
Recreation 40% $5,325,719 $5,008,416 $250,622 Recreation 40% $5,372,880 $5,181,380 $152,233
Cosley Zoo 9% $1,072,330 $1,072,330 $53,660 Cosley Zoo 10% $1,274,255 $1,274,255 $37,439
Audit 0% $42,878 $42,978 $2,151 Audit 0% $12,705 $12,705 $373
Insurance Liability 4% $539,809 $539,809 $27,012 Insurance Liability 5% $658,561 $658,561 $19,349
Retirement-IMRF 2% $240,734 $244,734 $12,247 Retirement-IMRF 1% $191,240 $191,240 $5,619
Retirement-Social Security 4% $526,648 $531,648 $26,604 Retirement-Social Security 4% $482,069 $482,069 $14,164

Aggregate Extension 100% $13,125,601 $12,500,095 $625,506 Aggregate Extension 100% $13,418,708 $13,035,708 $383,000

Difference of taxes not 
collected for levy year 2022 $625,506

Difference of taxes not 
collected for levy year 2023 $383,000

% of Total 
Aggregate Levy

2024 Levy as Proposed by 
Staff

2024 Final Levy Approved by 
Park Board

Dollars not 
collected per 

Levy

Summary 38% $5,158,001 $5,131,241 $20,286
Recreation 38% $5,103,958 $5,077,198 $20,073
Cosley Zoo 9% $1,274,287 $1,274,287 $5,038
Audit 0% $34,354 $34,354 $136
Insurance Liability 6% $827,023 $827,023 $3,270
Retirement-IMRF 4% $504,118 $504,118 $1,993
Retirement-Social Security 5% $689,096 $689,096 $2,724

Aggregate Extension 100% $13,590,837 $13,537,317 $53,520

Difference of 
taxes not 
collected for 
levy year 2024 $53,520

Total uncollected
for 2022-2024 Year 1 (2025) Year 2 (2026) Year 3 (2027) Year 4 (2028) Year 5 (2029) Year 6 (2030) Year 7 (2031) Year 8 (2032) Year 9 (2033) Year 10 (2034)

General $427,322 $435,868 $444,585 $453,477 $462,547 $471,798 $481,234 $490,858 $500,675 $510,689 $520,903
Recreation $422,928 $431,386 $440,014 $448,814 $457,791 $466,946 $476,285 $485,811 $495,527 $505,438 $515,547
Cosley Zoo $96,136 $98,059 $100,020 $102,020 $104,061 $106,142 $108,265 $110,430 $112,639 $114,892 $117,189

Total Aggregate Levy $1,062,026 $1,083,267 $1,104,932 $1,127,030 $1,149,571 $1,172,563 $1,196,014 $1,219,934 $1,244,333 $1,269,219 $1,294,604

Year 11 (2035) Year 12 (2036) Year 13 (2037) Year 14 (2038) Year 15 (2039) Year 16 (2040) Year 17 (2041) Year 18 (2042) Year 19 (2043) Year 20 (2044) Total
General $531,321 $541,947 $552,786 $563,842 $575,119 $586,621 $598,353 $610,321 $622,527 $634,978 $10,590,448
Recreation $525,857 $536,375 $547,102 $558,044 $569,205 $580,589 $592,201 $604,045 $616,126 $628,448 $10,481,551
Cosley Zoo $119,533 $121,924 $124,362 $126,850 $129,387 $131,974 $134,614 $137,306 $140,052 $142,853 $2,382,571

Total Aggregate Levy $1,320,496 $1,346,906 $1,373,844 $1,401,321 $1,429,347 $1,457,934 $1,487,093 $1,516,835 $1,547,171 $1,578,115 $26,320,527

Page 9 of 27



Wheaton Park District Historical Tax Levy

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
2025 

Proposed
House is worth $900,000- Yearly Tax - 
*New category for 2025 1,705.05  
House is worth $600,000 - Yearly Tax 1,184.73   1,094.15   1,144.03   1,276.48   1,412.57   1,458.76   1,573.71   1,631.82   1,727.10   1,659.35   1,611.10   1,564.00   1,557.07   1,491.62   1,224.26   1,229.54   1,225.69   1,136.70  
House is worth $450,000 - Yearly Tax 888.54   820.61   858.02   957.36   1,059.43   1,094.07   1,180.28   1,223.86   1,295.33   1,244.51   1,208.32   1,173.00   1,167.80   1,118.72   918.19   922.15   919.27   852.52    
House is worth $300,000- Yearly Tax 592.36   547.07   572.01   638.24   706.28   729.38   786.85   815.91   863.55   829.68   805.55   782.00   778.53   745.81   612.13   614.77   612.84   568.35    

Tax Levy Year - Taxes received the following year

 -

 200.00

 400.00

 600.00

 800.00

 1,000.00

 1,200.00

 1,400.00

 1,600.00

 1,800.00

 2,000.00

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 Proposed

Wheaton Park District Historical Tax Levy

House is worth $600,000 - Yearly Tax House is worth $450,000 - Yearly Tax House is worth $300,000- Yearly Tax House is worth $900,000- Yearly Tax - *New category for 2025

Page 10 of 27



Recommendation
In conclusion, the proposed 2025 aggregate levy, which includes an increase of $517,000, representing an 
estimated increase of 3.7%, is essential for maintaining the Wheaton Park District's operational service 
levels and ensuring the upkeep and improvement of our capital infrastructure.  The tax levy receipts are 
vital for supporting our facilities and programs, and the proposed increase will help us manage rising 
operational costs, including salaries, benefits, and maintenance.  We recommend approving the 2025 
levy as proposed, as it will help maintain the high standard of services expected by residents and support 
the long-term financial stability of the Wheaton Park District. 

Page 11 of 27



For the Yr. Monthly Daily

House is worth 900,000$   would pay Park District Taxes of: $1,705.05 $142.09 $4.66

House is worth 600,000$   would pay Park District Taxes of: $1,136.70 $94.72 $3.11

House is worth 450,000$   would pay Park District Taxes of: $852.52 $71.04 $2.33

House is worth 300,000$   would pay Park District Taxes of: $568.35 $47.36 $1.55

Wheaton Park District 2025 Proposed Property Tax Levy

A homeowner
whose 

Page 12 of 27



Levy Rate History

Levy 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
General 0.1900  0.1790  0.1773  0.1791  0.1710  0.1867  0.1890  0.1871  0.1841  0.1656  
Bond and Interest 0.1742  0.1638  0.1559  0.1491  0.1456  0.1424  0.1160  -  -  -  
Bond and Interest Limited 0.1091  0.1033  0.1003  0.0977  0.0973  0.0971  0.0973  0.0978  0.0976  0.0928  
IMRF 0.0343  0.0345  0.0318  0.0178  0.0358  0.0189  0.0217  0.0091  0.0068  0.0163  
Audit 0.0002  0.0012  0.0005  0.0005  0.0004  0.0004  0.0012  0.0016  0.0005  0.0012  
Liability 0.0281  0.0224  0.0259  0.0257  0.0243  0.0221  0.0105  0.0200  0.0232  0.0268  
FICA 0.0228  0.0260  0.0241  0.0239  0.0242  0.0143  0.0218  0.0197  0.0170  0.0223  
Recreation 0.1875  0.1766  0.1749  0.1768  0.1689  0.1847  0.1870  0.1851  0.1822  0.1640  
Museum 0.0421  0.0451  0.0404  0.0417  0.0408  0.0399  0.0395  0.0397  0.0448  0.0412  
SRA 0.0392  0.0373  0.0359  0.0346  0.0342  0.0338  0.0334  0.0093  0.0124  0.0154  
Aggregate Refunds 0.0027  0.0011  0.0009  0.0018  

Total Tax Rate 0.8275  0.7892  0.7670  0.7469  0.7425  0.7403  0.7201  0.5705  0.5695  0.5474  

% Increase over Prior 
Year

2015-
2014

2016-
2015

2017-
2016

2018-
2017

2019-
2018

2020-
2019

2021-
2020

2022-
2021

2023-
2022

2024-
2023

General -0.7% -5.8% -0.9% 1.0% -4.5% 9.2% 1.2% -1.0% -1.6% -10.0%
Bond and Interest -3.0% -6.0% -4.8% -4.4% -2.3% -2.2% -18.5% -100.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Bond and Interest Limited -2.2% -5.3% -2.9% -2.6% -0.4% -0.2% 0.2% 0.5% -0.2% -4.9%
IMRF -6.8% 0.6% -7.8% -44.0% 101.1% -47.2% 14.8% -58.1% -25.3% 139.7%
Audit 100.0% 500.0% -58.3% 0.0% -20.0% 0.0% 200.0% 33.3% -68.8% 140.0%
Liability -6.0% -20.3% 15.6% -0.8% -5.4% -9.1% -52.5% 90.5% 16.0% 15.5%
FICA -3.0% 14.0% -7.3% -0.8% 1.3% -40.9% 52.4% -9.6% -13.7% 31.2%
Recreation -0.8% -5.8% -1.0% 1.1% -4.5% 9.4% 1.2% -1.0% -1.6% -10.0%
Museum -0.5% 7.1% -10.4% 3.2% -2.2% -2.2% -1.0% 0.5% 12.8% -8.0%
SRA -2.0% -4.8% -3.8% -3.6% -1.2% -1.2% -1.2% -72.2% 33.3% 24.2%
Aggregrate Refunds 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Total Tax Rate -2.0% -4.6% -2.8% -2.6% -0.6% -0.3% -2.7% -20.8% -0.2% -3.9%

Page 13 of 27



Levy $ History

Levy 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
General 3,953,029 3,963,103 4,125,058 4,369,837 4,269,616 4,774,528 4,891,656 5,062,798 5,236,521 5,122,958
Bond and Interest 3,624,304 3,626,571 3,627,166 3,637,871 3,635,416 3,641,632 3,002,286 0 0 0
Bond and Interest Limited 2,269,871 2,287,087 2,333,578 2,383,770 2,429,437 2,483,164 2,518,297 2,646,401 2,776,124 2,870,836
IMRF 713,626 763,838 739,858 434,300 893,873 483,335 561,635 246,240 193,418 504,253
Audit 4,161 26,568 11,633 12,199 9,987 10,229 31,058 43,295 14,222 37,123
Liability 584,632 495,941 602,589 627,051 606,735 565,169 271,759 541,186 659,898 829,078
FICA 474,364 575,646 560,710 583,133 604,238 365,698 564,223 533,069 483,546 689,867
Recreation 3,901,016 3,909,966 4,069,220 4,313,720 4,217,183 4,723,381 4,839,892 5,008,680 5,182,478 5,073,461
Museum 875,908 998,525 939,946 1,017,433 1,018,716 1,020,373 1,022,330 1,074,255 1,274,287 1,274,552
SRA 815,572 825,831 835,249 844,201 853,923 864,376 864,451 251,652 352,704 476,410
Aggrerate Refunds 69,881 29,765 25,600 55,684

Total Taxes 17,216,483  17,473,077  17,845,006  18,223,515  18,539,124  18,931,884  18,637,466  15,437,340  16,198,799  16,934,222  

% Increase over Prior Year 2015-2014 2016-2015 2017-2016 2018-2017 2019-2018 2020-2019 2021-2020 2022-2021 2023-2022 2024-2023
General 2.3% 0.3% 4.1% 5.9% -2.3% 11.8% 2.5% 3.5% 3.4% -2.2%
Bond and Interest 0.0% 0.1% 0.0% 0.3% -0.1% 0.2% -17.6% -100.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Bond and Interest Limited 0.8% 0.8% 2.0% 2.2% 1.9% 2.2% 1.4% 5.1% 4.9% 3.4%
IMRF -3.9% 7.0% -3.1% -41.3% 105.8% -45.9% 16.2% -56.2% -21.5% 160.7%
Audit 106.1% 538.5% -56.2% 4.9% -18.1% 2.4% 203.6% 39.4% -67.2% 161.0%
Liability -3.1% -15.2% 21.5% 4.1% -3.2% -6.9% -51.9% 99.1% 21.9% 25.6%
FICA 0.0% 21.4% -2.6% 4.0% 3.6% -39.5% 54.3% -5.5% -9.3% 42.7%
Recreation 2.2% 0.2% 4.1% 6.0% -2.2% 12.0% 2.5% 3.5% 3.5% -2.1%
Museum 2.6% 14.0% -5.9% 8.2% 0.1% 0.2% 0.2% 5.1% 18.6% 0.0%
SRA 1.0% 1.3% 1.1% 1.1% 1.2% 1.2% 0.0% -70.9% 40.2% 35.1%
Aggregate Refunds -57.4% -14.0% 117.5%
Annual Increase in Taxes 1.0% 1.5% 2.1% 2.1% 1.7% 2.1% -1.6% -17.2% 4.9% 4.5%

Annual Increase in Taxes, 
excluding Bonds 1.4% 2.1% 2.8% 2.7% 2.2% 2.7% 2.4% -2.5% 4.9% 4.8%

Annual change in bonds 0.3% 0.3% 0.8% 1.0% 0.7% 1.0% -9.9% -52.1% 4.9% 3.4%

% of Total Levy
Bonds 34% 34% 33% 33% 33% 32% 30% 17% 17% 17%
Pensions 7% 8% 7% 6% 8% 4% 6% 5% 4% 7%
SRA 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 2% 2% 3%
Operations 54% 54% 55% 57% 55% 59% 60% 76% 77% 73%

Page 14 of 27



CPI History

Tax Levy 
Year CPI %

Annual 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
in CPI

Cumulative 
Average CPI %

2015 0.8% 0.8%

2016 0.7% -12.5% 0.8%

2017 2.1% 200.0% 1.2%

2018 2.1% 0.0% 1.4%

2019 1.9% -9.5% 1.5%

2020 2.3% 21.1% 1.7%

2021 1.4% -39.1% 1.6%

2022 5.0% 257.1% 2.0%

2023 5.0% 0.0% 2.4%
2024 3.4% -32.0% 2.5%
2025 2.9% -14.7% 2.5%

Median CPI % 2%

CPI Increase History for Tax Levy

Page 15 of 27



EAV History

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Residential 1,745,609,458  1,860,732,961  1,959,814,630  2,055,649,652  2,104,708,507  2,166,784,913  2,194,116,045  2,262,903,892  2,381,705,535  2,597,238,076  

Farm -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Commercial 323,858,307  341,792,379  355,320,407  372,048,160  380,009,396  378,583,925  381,926,626  431,187,153  450,185,988  483,419,806  

Industrial 9,771,460  10,173,350  10,110,840  10,736,530  10,548,235  10,304,160  10,336,120  9,867,469  10,364,840  10,892,630  

Railroad 1,302,575  1,325,281  1,352,029  1,452,587  1,585,589  1,652,952  1,798,734  1,973,198  2,133,199  2,023,110  

TOTAL EAV 2,080,541,800  2,214,023,971  2,326,597,906  2,439,886,929  2,496,851,727  2,557,325,950  2,588,177,525  2,705,931,712  2,844,389,562  3,093,573,622  

% Increase(Decrease) in EAV Year by Year

2014-2015 2015-2016 2016-2017 2017-2018 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021 2021-2022 2022-2023 2023-2024

Residential 3.2% 6.6% 5.3% 4.9% 2.4% 2.9% 1.3% 3.1% 5.2% 9.0%

Farm

Commercial 2.2% 5.5% 4.0% 4.7% 2.1% -0.4% 0.9% 12.9% 4.4% 7.4%

Industrial 0.7% 4.1% -0.6% 6.2% -1.8% -2.3% 0.3% -4.5% 5.0% 5.1%

Railroad 20.0% 1.7% 2.0% 7.4% 9.2% 4.2% 8.8% 9.7% 8.1% -5.2%

TOTAL EAV 3.06% 6.42% 5.08% 4.87% 2.33% 2.42% 1.21% 4.55% 5.12% 8.76%

Average % Increase(Decrease) in EAV Year by Year

1998-2015 1998-2016 1998-2017 1998-2018 1998-2019 1998-2020 1998-2021 1998-2022 1998-2023 1998-2024

Residential 3.1% 3.3% 3.4% 3.4% 3.4% 3.4% 3.3% 3.3% 3.3% 3.6%

Farm -25.0% -25.0% -25.0% -25.0% -25.0% -25.0% -25.0% -25.0% -25.0% -25.0%

Commercial 2.9% 3.1% 3.1% 3.2% 3.2% 3.0% 2.9% 3.3% 3.4% 3.5%

Industrial 21.4% 20.5% 19.4% 18.7% 17.7% 16.8% 16.1% 15.2% 14.8% 14.5%

Railroad 10.1% 9.6% 9.2% 9.1% 9.1% 8.9% 8.9% 8.9% 8.9% 8.4%

TOTAL EAV 3.1% 3.2% 3.3% 3.4% 3.4% 3.3% 3.2% 3.3% 3.4% 3.6%

Composition of EAV

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Residential 84% 84% 84% 84% 84% 85% 85% 84% 84% 84%

Farm 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Commercial 16% 15% 15% 15% 15% 15% 15% 16% 16% 16%

Industrial 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

Railroad 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%

TOTAL EAV 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Current valuation 2,142,799,808 2,268,069,080 2,392,969,616 2,510,745,558 2,570,067,378 2,632,719,266 2,661,265,894 2,739,102,164 2,877,238,728 3,127,759,221

Current valuation 
% change 3.69% 5.85% 5.51% 4.92% 2.36% 2.44% 1.08% 2.92% 5.04% 8.71%

Page 16 of 27



New Construction History

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

New Construction 13,061,276  31,601,316  18,727,575  15,981,660  9,559,682   11,430,520  16,298,550  50,431,619  10,346,440  9,170,259   

% Increase(Decrease) 
Year by Year 10.2% 141.9% -40.7% -14.7% -40.2% 19.6% 42.6% 209.4% -79.5% -11.4%

Average % 
Increase(Decrease) since 
2001 1.4% 10.7% 7.5% 6.2% 3.6% 4.5% 6.4% 16.1% 11.7% 10.7%

Minimum New 
Construction 10,410,039 10,410,039 10,410,039 10,410,039 9,559,682 9,559,682 9,559,682 9,559,682 9,559,682 9,170,259

Maximum New 
Construction 24,596,240 31,601,316 31,601,316 31,601,316 31,601,316 31,601,316 31,601,316 50,431,619 50,431,619 50,431,619

10 Year Average New 
Construction 16,551,061 17,251,569 16,709,703 16,003,186 15,157,859 14,597,771 14,978,957 18,981,115 18,929,409 18,660,890

Page 17 of 27



Limiting Rate

WORKSHEET TO CALCULATE LIMITING RATE FOR LEVY YEAR 2025
Includes TIF Changes

NUMERATOR CALCULATION:
IMPORTANT! Use figures from prior year unless taxes have been abated within the past
3 years; if so, use the year with the highest tax extension amongst the past 3 years.

DuPage County 13,531,291

2025 CPI for Levy Year  2.9%
The CPI is established by the state and provided to the county mid-year.

NUMERATOR --> 13,923,698

DENOMINATOR CALCULATION:
IMPORTANT! Use actual figures for the Levy Year; if not available, estimate
by using prior year's figures and increase by estimated percentage.

Estimated EAV

Year Increase Factor

2025 TIF Valuation (DuPage) (2) 3,093,573,622 X 1.0000 3,093,573,622

2025 Less:  DuPage new construction (1) 9,170,259     X 200.0% = 27,510,777
DENOMINATOR --> 3,084,403,363 3,066,062,845

Limiting Rate
Numerator 13,923,698

Denominator 3,066,062,845 = 0.4541%

(1) These figures are from the DuPage County Clerk's March letter, which gives final prior year calculations and information for
 subsequent year's tax levy.  A quicker source is the IDOR website. It posts there in late January.

(2)  These figures are per the "FINAL" Tax worksheet for year indicated. 

Page 18 of 27



LEVY

WHEATON PARK DISTRICT
TAX LEVY WORKSHEET

2025 Tax Levy (rec'd in subsequent year)

(A) (B)

2024 2025 (C)

Statutory 
Rate Limit

Limited 
Figures Proposed Levy

Increase 
(Decrease)

  % Increase/ 
Decrease

Extended Tax 
Rate 

(if applicable) (DuPage) (A)+(C) (C)/(A) (B)/EAV

10 General 0.3500    5,122,958 5,306,478 183,520 3.6% 0.1715  
20 Recreation 0.3700    5,073,461 5,256,981 183,520 3.6% 0.1699  
22 Cosley Zoo 0.0700    1,274,552 1,314,552 40,000 3.1% 0.0425  
24 Audit 0.0050    37,123 35,825 (1,298) -3.5% 0.0012  
23 Insurance Liability None 829,078 750,640 (78,438) -9.5% 0.0243  
26 Retirement-IMRF None 504,253 575,529 71,276 14.1% 0.0186  
25 Retirement-Social Security None 689,867 807,967 118,100 17.1% 0.0261  

Aggregate Extension 13,531,291 14,047,971 516,680 3.7% 0.4541  

Aggregate Refunds None 55,684 0 0 0.0% -    
21 SRA 0.0400    476,410 610,000 133,590 28.0% 0.0197  
30 Bond & Interest-Limited None 631,150 628,300 (2,850) -0.5% 0.0203  
30 Annual Bonds-Limited 

Estimated None 2,210,759 2,296,023 85,264 3.9% 0.0742  

16,905,295 17,582,295 732,684 4.3% 0.5683  

Numerator Denominator
Prior Year Levy 13,531,291 Estimated EAV for LY 2024 0.0% 3,093,573,622
CPI % Increase (Decrease) 2.9% Prior Year New Constr. w/ change of 200.0% (27,510,777)

Levy 13,923,698 Valuation 3,066,062,845

TAX FUNDFund #

2025 LIMITING RATE 0.4541    

Page 19 of 27



LEVY

WHEATON PARK DISTRICT
TAX LEVY WORKSHEET

2026 Tax Levy (rec'd in subsequent year)

(A) (B)

2025
2026 (C)

Statutory 
Rate Limit

Extended 
Figures

Proposed Levy
Increase 

(Decrease)
  % Increase/ 

Decrease
Extended Tax 

Rate 
(if applicable) (DuPage) (A)+(C) (C)/(A) (B)/EAV

10 General 0.3500    5,306,478 5,392,678 86,200 2% 0.1709  
20 Recreation 0.3700    5,256,981 5,343,181 86,200 2% 0.1693  
22 Cosley Zoo 0.0700    1,314,552 1,364,552 50,000 4% 0.0432  
24 Audit 0.0050    35,825 51,744 15,919 44% 0.0016  
23 Insurance Liability None 750,640 885,823 135,183 18% 0.0281  
26 Retirement-IMRF None 575,529 545,780 (29,749) -5% 0.0173  
25 Retirement-Social Security None 807,967 797,530 (10,437) -1% 0.0253  

Aggregate Extension 14,047,971 14,381,287 302,540 2% 0.4558  

21 SRA 0.0400    610,000 610,000 0 0% 0.0193  
30 Bond & Interest-Limited None 628,300 0 (628,300) -100% -    

15,286,271 14,991,287 (325,760) -2% 0.4751  

Numerator Denominator
Prior Year Levy 13,923,698 Estimated EAV for LY 2025 2.0% 3,155,445,094
CPI % Increase (Decrease) 3.0% 1.4% (8,895,717)

Levy 14,341,409 Valuation 3,146,549,377

TAX FUNDFund #

2026 LIMITING RATE 0.4558    

Prior Year New Constr. w/ change of 

Page 20 of 27



LEVY

WHEATON PARK DISTRICT
TAX LEVY WORKSHEET

2027 Tax Levy (rec'd in subsequent year)

(A) (B)

2026
2027 (C)

Statutory Extended Proposed Levy Increase   % Increase/ Extended Tax 
(if applicable) (DuPage) (A)+(C) (C)/(A) (B)/EAV

10 General 0.3500    5,392,678 5,540,328 147,650 3% 0.1721  
20 Recreation 0.3700    5,343,181 5,490,831 147,650 3% 0.1706  
22 Cosley Zoo 0.0700    1,364,552 1,419,552 55,000 4% 0.0441  
24 Audit 0.0050    51,744 47,339 (4,405) -9% 0.0015  
23 Insurance Liability None 885,823 924,316 38,493 4% 0.0287  
26 Retirement-IMRF None 545,780 574,469 28,689 5% 0.0178  
25 Retirement-Social Security None 797,530 814,229 16,699 2% 0.0253  

Aggregate Extension 14,381,287 14,811,063 415,660 3% 0.4602  

21 SRA 0.0400    610,000 610,000 0 0% 0.0190  
30 Bond & Interest-Limited None 0 0 0 0% -    

14,991,287 15,421,063 415,660 3% 0.4791  

Numerator Denominator
Prior Year Levy 14,341,409 Estimated EAV for LY 2026 2.0% 3,218,553,996
CPI % Increase (Decrease) 3.0% 1.4% (9,017,673)

Levy 14,771,652 Valuation 3,209,536,323

Fund # TAX FUND

(B) LIMITING RATE 0.4602    

Prior Year New Constr. w/ change of 

Page 21 of 27



LEVY

WHEATON PARK DISTRICT
TAX LEVY WORKSHEET

2028 Tax Levy (rec'd in subsequent year)

(A) (B)

2027 2028 (C)

Statutory 
Rate Limit

Extended 
Figures

Proposed Levy
Increase 

(Decrease)
  % Increase/ 

Decrease
Extended Tax 

Rate 
(if applicable) (DuPage) (A)+(C) (C)/(A) (B)/EAV

10 General 0.3500    5,540,328 5,712,253 171,925 3% 0.1740  
20 Recreation 0.3700    5,490,831 5,662,756 171,925 3% 0.1725  
22 Cosley Zoo 0.0700    1,419,552 1,474,552 55,000 4% 0.0449  
24 Audit 0.0050    47,339 50,187 2,848 6% 0.0015  
23 Insurance Liability None 924,316 967,758 43,442 5% 0.0295  
26 Retirement-IMRF None 574,469 575,106 637 0% 0.0175  
25 Retirement-Social Security None 814,229 815,402 1,173 0% 0.0248  

Aggregate Extension 14,811,063 15,258,013 427,674 3% 0.4648  

21 SRA 0.0400    610,000 610,000 0 0% 0.0186  
30 Bond & Interest-Limited None 0 0 0 0% -    

15,421,063 15,868,013 427,674 3% 0.4833  

Numerator Denominator
Prior Year Levy 14,771,652 Estimated EAV for LY 2027 2.0% 3,282,925,076
CPI % Increase (Decrease) 3.0% 1.4% (9,517,022)

Levy 15,214,801 Valuation 3,273,408,055

TAX FUNDFund #

(B) LIMITING RATE 0.4648    

Prior Year New Constr. w/ change of 

Page 22 of 27



LEVY

WHEATON PARK DISTRICT
TAX LEVY WORKSHEET

2029 Tax Levy (rec'd in subsequent year)

(A) (B)

2028 2029 (C)

Statutory 
Rate Limit

Extended 
Figures

Proposed Levy
Increase 

(Decrease)
  % Increase/ 

Decrease
Extended Tax 

Rate 
(if applicable) (DuPage) (A)+(C) (C)/(A) (B)/EAV

10 General 0.3500    5,712,253 5,881,739 169,486 3% 0.1756  
20 Recreation 0.3700    5,662,756 5,832,242 169,486 3% 0.1742  
22 Cosley Zoo 0.0700    1,474,552 1,534,552 60,000 4% 0.0458  
24 Audit 0.0050    50,187 51,708 1,521 3% 0.0015  
23 Insurance Liability None 967,758 1,012,617 44,859 5% 0.0302  
26 Retirement-IMRF None 575,106 581,197 6,091 1% 0.0174  
25 Retirement-Social Security None 815,402 823,918 8,516 1% 0.0246  

Aggregate Extension 15,258,013 15,717,972 444,083 3% 0.4694  

21 SRA 0.0400    610,000 610,000 0 0% 0.0182  
30 Bond & Interest-Limited None 0 0 0 0% -    

15,868,013 16,327,972 444,083 3% 0.4876  

Numerator Denominator
Prior Year Levy 15,214,801 Estimated EAV for LY 2028 2.0% 3,348,583,578
CPI % Increase (Decrease) 3.0% 1.4% (10,044,021)

Levy 15,671,245 Valuation 3,338,539,556

Fund #

(B) LIMITING RATE 0.4694    

TAX FUND

Prior Year New Constr. w/ change of 

Page 23 of 27



Liability

LIABILITY INSURANCE FUND LEVY (Fund #23)

Levy Year: 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Fiscal Year: 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

Spendable Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 384,913    495,431 417,540 436,411 455,468 476,229
Anticipated Revenue 845,432 756,987 891,494 929,794 973,019 1,017,654
Cash & Revenues 1,230,346 1,252,418 1,309,033 1,366,205 1,428,487 1,493,883
Less:  Expenditures 734,915 834,878 872,622 910,737 952,258 995,855
Est. Fund Balance, End of Year 495,431 417,540 436,411 455,468 476,229 498,028

Fund Balance Goal (50% of Budgeted 
expenditures) 367,457 417,439 436,311 455,369 476,129 497,927

Excess (Deficit) of Fund Balance Goal 127,974 100 100 100 100 100

REVENUE BREAKDOWN
Actual Extension or Proposed levy 829,078 750,640 885,823 924,316 967,758 1,012,617
Less:  Uncollectibles 4,145 3,753 4,429 4,622 4,839 5,063
     Subtotal 824,932 746,887 881,394 919,694 962,919 1,007,554
Miscellaneous Income 500 100 100 100 100 100
Interest 20,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000

Anticipated Revenues 845,432 756,987 891,494 929,794 973,019 1,017,654

EXPENDITURE BREAKDOWN Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected
PDRMA 637,415    726,003    762,303    800,418    840,439    882,461    
Unemployment 30,000 30,000 30,000 30,000 31,500      33,075      
Background Checks/Physicals (from HR) 27,500 28,875 30,319 30,319 30,319      30,319      
Other Expenditures (Supplies, etc) 40,000 50,000 50,000 50,000 50,000      50,000      

Annual Expenditures 734,915 834,878 872,622 910,737 952,258 995,855

2025 Budget Prior Yr. Prior Yr. Prior Yr. Prior Yr.
PDRMA Annl Prems (paid monthly) from projections Estimate Estimate + 5% Estimate + 5% Estimate + 5% Estimate + 5%
Property coverage 158,287 166,489 174,813 183,554 192,731 202,368
Workers Comp 319,985 370,618 389,149 408,607 429,037 450,489
Public Liability 110,402 129,906 136,401 143,221 150,382 157,901
Employment Practices Liab. 38,036 46,525 48,851 51,294 53,859 56,552
Pollution Liability 157 167 175 184 193 203
Cyber 10,548 12,299 12,914 13,559 14,237 14,949

Total PDRMA Premiums 637,415 726,003 762,303 800,418 840,439 882,461

###
The cash and investments goal of 50% is the maximum end of the established goal for the District. That goal was established when the District had a March 31 fiscal year end. 
Currently the fiscal year end is December 31, since this means that the 5 months of activity will have been incurred by this fund prior to receiving the current year's first tax 
installment, we have used the high end of the target in this analysis to assure adequate resources are available to meet the obligations of this fund.

Page 24 of 27



Audit

AUDIT FUND LEVY (Fund #24)
Levy Year: 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Fiscal Year: 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

10-Sep-25 (Budgeted) (Estimated) (Estimated) (Estimated) (Estimated) (Estimated)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 28,987    31,154 22,500 24,895 24,232 24,956
Anticipated Revenue 37,437 36,146 51,985 47,602 50,436 51,949
Cash & Revenues 66,424 67,300 74,485 72,497 74,668 76,905
Less:  Expenditures 35,270 44,800 49,590 48,265 49,712 51,204
Est. Fund Balance, End of Year 31,154 22,500 24,895 24,232 24,956 25,701

17,635 22,400 24,795 24,132 24,856 25,602

13,519 100 100 100 100 100

REVENUE BREAKDOWN

Proposed or actual levy 37,123 35,825 51,744 47,339 50,187 51,708
Less:  Uncollectibles 0.5% 186 179 259 237 251 259

Subtotal 36,937 35,646 51,485 47,102 49,936 51,449
Interest 500 500 500 500 500 500

Anticipated Revenues 37,437 36,146 51,985 47,602 50,436 51,949

2025 Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated
EXPENDITURE BREAKDOWN from projections Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures
Salaries and Wages 0 500 500 500 515 530
Acctg. Services 0 500 500 500 515 530
Legal & Consulting 0 0 0 0 0 0
Audit Fees for Audit fund 35,270 43,800 48,590 47,265 48,682 50,143

35,270 44,800 49,590 48,265 49,712 51,204

Fund Balance Goal (50% of budget)

Excess (Deficit) of Fund Balance Goal

The cash and investments goal of 50% is the maximum end of the established goal for the District. That goal was established when the District had a March 31 fiscal year 
end. Currently the fiscal year end is December 31, since this means that the 5 months of activity will have been incurred by this fund prior to receiving the current year's 
first tax installment, we have used the high end of the target in this analysis to assure adequate resources are available to meet the obligations of this fund.

Page 25 of 27



FICA

FICA FUND LEVY (Fund #25)
Levy Year: 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Fiscal Year: 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

(Budgeted) (Estimated) (Estimated) (Estimated) (Estimated) (Estimated)

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 418,657    380,197 419,069 430,147 440,168 443,962
Anticipated Revenue 740,918 874,927 868,862 886,824 889,365 899,239
Cash & Revenues 1,159,574 1,255,124 1,287,932 1,316,971 1,329,533 1,343,200
  Less Expenditures 779,377 836,055 857,785 876,803 885,571 894,427
Est. Fund Balance, End of Year 380,197 419,069 430,147 440,168 443,962 448,774

Fund Balance Goal (50% of 
Budgeted expenditures) 389,689 418,028 428,893 438,402 442,786 447,213

Excess (Deficit) of Fund Balance Goal (9,491) 1,042 1,254 1,766 1,176 1,560

REVENUE BREAKDOWN 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
Proposed or extended levy 689,867 807,967 797,530 814,229 815,402 823,918
Less:  Uncollectibles 0.5% 3,449 4,040 3,988 4,071 4,077 4,120

Subtotal 686,418 803,927 793,542 810,158 811,325 819,798
CPPRT 39,500 66,000 67,320 68,666 70,040 71,441
Interest 15,000 5,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000

Anticipated Revenues 740,918 874,927 868,862 886,824 889,365 899,239

2025 Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated
EXPENDITURE BREAKDOWN from projections from budget from budget from budget (prior yr + 1%) (prior yr + 1%)

FICA 779,377    836,055   857,785   876,803   885,571   894,427   
Estimated expenditures 779,377 836,055 857,785 876,803 885,571 894,427

The cash and investments goal of 50% is the maximum end of the established goal for the District. That goal was established when the District had a March 31 fiscal year 
end. Currently the fiscal year end is December 31, since this means that the 5 months of activity will have been incurred by this fund prior to receiving the current year's first 
tax installment, we have used the high end of the target in this analysis to assure adequate resources are available to meet the obligations of this fund.

Page 26 of 27



IMRF

IMRF FUND LEVY (Fund #26)
Levy Year: 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029

Fiscal Year: 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030

(Budgeted) (Estimated) (Estimated) (Estimated) (Estimated) (Estimated)
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 363,833   321,820 323,700 315,235 322,338 325,036
Anticipated Revenue 547,231 646,651 618,371 648,263 650,270 657,731
Cash & Revenues 911,065 968,470 942,071 963,498 972,607 982,767
  Less Expenditures 589,245 644,770 626,836 641,160 647,572 654,047
Est. Fund Balance, End of Year 321,820 323,700 315,235 322,338 325,036 328,719

Fund Balance Goal (50% of 
Budgeted expenditures) 294,623 322,385 313,418 320,580 323,786 327,024

Excess (Deficit) of Fund Balance Goal 27,197 1,315 1,817 1,758 1,250 1,696

REVENUE BREAKDOWN 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030
Proposed or extended levy 504,253 575,529 545,780 574,469 575,106 581,197
Less:  Uncollectibles 0.5% 2,521 2,878 2,729 2,872 2,876 2,906

Subtotal 501,731 572,651 543,051 571,596 572,230 578,291
CPPRT 39,500 66,000 67,320 68,666 70,040 71,441
Interest 6,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000 8,000

Anticipated Revenues 547,231 646,651 618,371 648,263 650,270 657,731

2025 Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated
EXPENDITURE BREAKDOWN from projections from budget input from budget input from budget input (prior yr + 1%) (prior yr + 1%)
IMRF 589,245   644,770   626,836   641,160   647,572   654,047   

Estimated expenditures 589,245 644,770 626,836 641,160 647,572 654,047

The cash and investments goal of 50% is the maximum end of the established goal for the District. That goal was established when the District had a March 31 fiscal year 
end. Currently the fiscal year end is December 31, since this means that the 5 months of activity will have been incurred by this fund prior to receiving the current year's first 
tax installment, we have used the high end of the target in this analysis to assure adequate resources are available to meet the obligations of this fund.

Page 27 of 27






























































































































































































































































































































































































































	Agenda
	Checks Approval Document
	Sept 24 2025 minutes
	RMCC Automation System Project
	RMCC Full Size Lockers
	RES 20252-04 Estimate of Aggragate Levy
	Wage Growth & Tax Levy, CPI History
	Audit Proposal- 3 year contract
	AGC Food Supply Bid
	AGC Chemical Bid
	TIF Meeting
	Wheaton Park Distict Subcommittee Meeting Notice and Agenda Oct 8  2025.pdf
	DISCUSSION ITEMS

	Wage Growth Compiled.pdf
	Memo from M Benard Wage Growth- Tax Levy CPI
	Memo from M Benard & M Jay
	SHRM
	Pontiflex
	HR Source
	Tax Rate Rankings
	Levy Rate History
	Levy History
	CPI History

	Staff Reports compiled.pdf
	Finance
	Athletics
	Arrowhead
	Marketing
	Parks & Planning
	Recreation
	Zoo

	Resolution Cover Memo 2025 rec'd in 2026.pdf
	M E M O R A N D U M
	From:  Michael Benard, Executive Director
	Sandra Simpson, Director of Finance

	Wheaton Park District Board Meeting Minutes September 24 , 2025 FINAL.pdf
	COMMUNITY INPUT
	UNFINISHED BUSINESS

	SOI RMCC full size lockers- supplimental info.pdf
	REVENUE OR FUNDING IMPLICATIONS:
	This was not specifically budgeted in FY 2025, however funds are available in the account for this facility.
	STAKEHOLDER PROCESS:
	LEGAL REVIEW:
	ATTACHMENTS:
	Comparison with other facilities
	RECOMMENDATION:

	REVENUE OR FUNDING IMPLICATIONS:
	STAKEHOLDER PROCESS:
	LEGAL REVIEW:
	ATTACHMENTS:
	RECOMMENDATION:





